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Requirements and Prohibitions Concerning Franchising and Business Opportunity Ventures”
(“Franchise Rule” or “Rule”), 16 C.F.R. Part 436.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28
U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a) and 1345, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 53(b) and 57b. This action arises under 15
U.S.C. § 45(a)(1).

3. Venue is proper in the United States District Court for the Southern District of
Florida pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) and (c), and 15 U.S.C. § 53(b).

PLAINTIFF
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COMMON ENTERPRISE
10. Corporate defendants Fidelity and Steinberg Group have operated as a common
enterprise while engaging in the deceptive acts and practices and other violations of law alleged
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formulated, directed, controlled or had authority to control, or participated in the acts of the
corporate defendants that comprise the common enterprise.
COMMERCE

11.  Atall times relevant to this Complaint, Defendants have maintained a substantial
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already secured, or will secure within 45 days of purchase, retail locations in which to place the
consumer’s ATMs.

18. In the course of their sales presentations and communications, Defendants and
their representatives, either expressly or by implication, also promise consumers that all of the
consumer’s ATMs will be installed and operational at those locations within 45 days of purchase.

19.  In the course of their sales presentations and communications, Defendants and
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consumer’s ATMs will generate a minimum of 12 to 15 withdrawals each day, that a typical
surcharge is set at or about $2.00, and that consumers can therefore expect a daily gross income
of $24 to $30 per ATM, which translates to a monthly gross income of $720 to $900 per ATM.

20.  In the course of their sales presentations and communications, Defendants and
their representatives also promise consumers, either expressly or by implication, that Defendants
will provide substantial assistance and product support to the consumer, by, among other things,
(a) relocating free of charge, at least once, any ATM that does not generate at least 12
withdrawals each day; (b) providing on-site maintenance and support for the consumer’s ATMs;
(c) providing the consumer with in-depth and on-site technical training; and (d) providing the
consumer with telephone and Internet support whenever the consumer needs it.

21.  In the course of their sales presentations and communications, Defendants and

their representatives, either expressly or by implication, also represent to prospective purchasers
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including a document entitled “FTC Disclosure Statement” that purportedly makes certain
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Defendant Fidelity has been sued at least three times by current or former distributors over the
franchise relationship, in violation of the Franchise Rule.

46.  The disclosure statement described in Paragraph 40 fails to disclose that the
Defendant Fidelity has been sued for fraud, conversion and unjust enrichment, in violation of the
Franchise Rule.

47.  The disclosure statement described in Paragraph 40 states that Defendants have
operated and offered for sale their bank card processing distributorship program since May 2004,
when, in fact, Defendants did not begin operating or offering for sale their bank card
distributorships until mid-2006, in violation of the Franchise Rule.

VIOLATIONS OF SECTION 5 OF THE FTC ACT
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51.  Therefore, Defendants’ representations as set forth in Paragraph 49 of this
Complaint are false and misleading and constitute deceptive acts or practices in violation of

Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).

COUNT II
[Misrepresentations Regarding Placement of ATMs]

52.  In numerous instances in the course of offering for sale and selling ATM
distributorship business ventures, Defendants, directly or indirectly, represent, expressly or by
implication, that Defendants have already secured, or will secure within 45 days of purchase,
retail locations where consumers’ ATMs will be placed.

53.  Intruth and in fact, at the time of offering for sale and selling ATM
distributorship business ventures, Defendants have not already secured, nor do they secure within
45 days of purchase, retail locations for consumers’ ATMs.

54. Therefore, Defendants’ representations as set forth in Paragraph 52 of this
Complaint are false and misleading and constitute deceptive acts or practices in violation of
Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).

COUNT 111
[Misrepresentations Regarding Operation of ATMs]
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57.  Therefore, Defendants’ representations as set forth in Paragraph 55 of this
Complaint are false and misleading and constitute deceptive acts or practices in violation of
Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).

COUNT 1V

[Misrepresentations Regarding Substantial Assistance with ATM Distributorships]

U ™y i\ T3 30T o1 10 T e

b o=

. - , —
implication, that they will provide substantial assistance and product support to purchasers of the

business ventures, by, among other things, (a) relocating free of charge, at least once, any ATM
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for the earnings claim is available to prospective franchisees. 16 C.F.R.
§ 436.1(b)(2) and (c)(2); and

C. provide, as prescribed by the Rule, an earnings claim document containing
information that constitutes a reasonable basis for any earnings claim it
makes. 16 C.F.R. § 436.1(b) and (c).

64.  Pursuant to Section 18(d)(3) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 57a(d)(3), and 16 C.F.R.
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affecting commerce, in violation of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a).
VIOLATIONS OF THE FRANCHISE RULE
COUNTV
[Basic Disclosure Violations with Regard to

Defendants’ ATM and Bank Card Processing Distributorships]
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franchisees; and/or (2) failing to provide prospective franchisees with an earnings ¢laim
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CONSUMER INJURY

67.  Consumers throughout the United States have suffered or will suffer substantial
monetary loss as a result of Defendants’ violations of Section 5(a) of the FTC Act and the
Franchise Rule. Absent injunctive relief by this Court, Defendants are likely to continue to injure
consumers and harm the public interest.

THIS COURT’S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF

68. Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), empowers this Court to grant
injunctive and other ancillary relief, including consumer redress, disgorgement, and restitution, to
prevent and remedy any violations of any provision of law enforced by the Federal Trade
Commission.

69. Section 19 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 57b, authorizes this Court to grant such

relief as the Court finds necessary to redress injury to consumers or other persons resulting from
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Defendants’ unlawful activities, appointing a receiver, freezing Defendants’ assets,
and granting Plaintiff immediate access to Defendants’ business premises for the
purpose of inspecting and copying business records;

2. Enter a permanent injunction to prevent future violations of the FTC Act and the
Franchise Rule by Defendants;

3. Award such relief as this Court finds necessary to redress injury to consumers
resulting from Defendants’ violations of the FTC Act and the Franchise Rule,
including but not limited to, rescission or reformation of contracts, restitution, refund

of monies paid, and disgorgement of ill-gotten monies; and
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Dated: ! / 29 / ol Respectfully submitted,

WILLIAM BLUMENTHAL
General Counsel

TN de .

RICHARD McKEWEN
Attorney E-mail Address: rmckewen@ftc.gov
J. RONALD BROOKE, JR.
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